
EDGERTON CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

CITY HALL, 404 EAST NELSON STREET 
July 11, 2024 

7:00 P.M. 
Call to Order 
1. Roll Call   

____ Roberts ____ Longanecker ____ Lewis ____ Lebakken ____ Malloy ____ Conus 
2. Welcome 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Consent Agenda (Consent Agenda items will be acted upon by one motion unless a Council 
member requests an item be removed for discussion and separate action)  
4. Approve Minutes from July 2, 2024 Special City Council Meeting  
5. Approve Final Acceptance of the Design/Build of the Skate Park for Glendell Acres Park 

Improvements 
 
Motion: ________ Second: ________ Vote: ____ 
 

Regular Agenda 
6. Declaration. At this time Council members may declare any conflict or communication they 

have had that might influence their ability to impartially consider today’s issues. 
 
7. Public Comments. The City of Edgerton encourages public participation in local 

governance issues. To facilitate an efficient and effective meeting, persons wishing to 
address the City Council must sign-up before the meeting begins. Speakers must provide 
their name and address for the record and are limited to three (3) minutes. The maximum 
time limit for all speakers will be thirty (30) minutes. Comments on personnel matters or 
matters pending before court/other outside tribunals are not permitted. Any comments are 
for informational purposes only. No action will be taken. 

 
The Mayor may modify these provisions, as necessary. The Mayor may limit any 
unnecessary, off-topic, or redundant comments or presentations. Speakers should address 
their comments to City Council members only and should not speak to fellow audience 
members. City Council members will not engage in a dialogue or debate with speakers. 
Speakers and audience members should conduct themselves in a civil and respectful 
manner. Disruptive conduct may result in removal from the meeting. 
 

8. Presentation. 2024 ETC Citizen Survey Results 
 
Business Requiring Action 
9. CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 07-11-24A PROVIDING FOR A HEARING TO 

DISCUSS A POSSIBLE DANGEROUS AND UNSAFE BUILDING EXISTING AT 301 E. 
5TH STREET IN THE CITY OF EDGERTON, JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS PURSUANT 
TO CITY OF EDGERTON MUNICIPAL CODE, CHAPTER IV, ARTICLE 4, SECTION 4-
1105 
 
Motion: ________ Second: ________ Vote: ____ 



10. CONSIDER AMENDMENT TO THE COOPERATION AGREEMENT WITH THE BOARD 
OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS FOR RENEWING 
PARTICIPATION IN THE JOHNSON COUNTY URBAN COUNTY FOR 
PARTICIPATION IN THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG), 
HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIPS (HOME), AND EMERGENCY SOLUTIONS 
GRANT (ESG) 
 
Motion: ________ Second: ________ Vote: ____ 

 
11. CONSIDER ORDINANCE NO. 2162 AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A LOAN 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS AND THE STATE OF 
KANSAS, ACTING BY AN THROUGH THE KANSAS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND 
ENVIRONMENT FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING A LOAN FROM THE KANSAS 
WATER POLLUTION CONTROL REVOLVING FUND FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
FINANCING A WASTEWATER TREATMENT PROJECT; ESTABLISHING A 
DEDICATED REVENUE FOR REPAYMENT OF SUCH LOAN; AUTHORIZING AND 
APPROVING CERTAIN DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH; AND 
AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE LOAN 
AGREEMENT. 
 
Motion: ________ Second: ________ Vote: ____ 

 
12. Report by the City Administrator 

• Senior Property Tax Rebate and HOME Improvements Grant Update 
• Update on 312 E 5th St.   
• Utilities Quarterly Update 
• Municipal Court Update 
• Johnson County Sheriff’s Office Update 

 
13. Report by the Mayor 
 
 
14. Future Meeting Reminders:  

• July 18: Budget Work Session – 7:00 PM 
• July 25: City Council Meeting – 7:00 PM 
• August 8: City Council Meeting – 7:00 PM 
• August 13: Planning Commission – 7:00 PM 
• August 22: City Council Meeting – 7:00 PM 

 
15. CONSIDER RECESSING INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO THE 

ATTORNEY/CLIENT EXCEPTION TO INCLUDE CITY ATTORNEY AND CITY 
ADMINISTRATOR FOR DISCUSSIONS RELATED TO ACQUISITION OF REAL 
PROPERTY (K.S.A. 75- 4319(B)(6)) 
 
Motion: ________ Second: ________ Vote: ____ 

 
16. Adjourn Motion: ________ Second: ________ Vote: ____ 
 



 

x 

EV
EN

TS
 

7/13: Puzzle Palooza 
7/17: Senior Lunch 
7/18: Culinary Kids: Chocolate Chip Cookies 
7/19: Coloring Cafe 
7/19: Outdoor Movie Night: Ghostbusters Frozen Empire 
7/22: Fun in the Sun 
7/24: Dog Bite Prevention Class 
7/25: Crafty Kids: Paint Pouring 



City of Edgerton, Kansas 
Minutes of City Council Special Session 

July 2, 2024 

A Special Session of the City Council (the Council) was held in the Edgerton City Hall, 404 
E. Nelson, Edgerton, Kansas July 2, 2024. The meeting convened at 5:00PM with Mayor
Donald Roberts presiding.

1. ROLL CALL

Clay Longanecker present 
Josh Lewis present 
Deb Lebakken present 
Bill Malloy  present 
Ron Conus present 

With a quorum present, the meeting commenced. 

Staff in attendance: City Administrator, Beth Linn 
City Clerk, Alex Clower 
Assistant to the City Administrator, Kara Banks 
Public Works Director, Dan Merkh 
Public Work Superintendent, Trey Whitaker 
Parks and Recreation Director, Levi Meyer 
CIP Project Manager, Holly Robertson 
Development Services Director, Zach Moore 

2. WELCOME. Mayor Roberts welcomed all in attendance.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. All present participated in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Consent Agenda (Consent Agenda items will be acted upon by one motion unless a Council 
member requests an item be removed for discussion and separate action)  
4. Approve Minutes from June 13, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting
5. Approve Application FP2024-0001, Final Plat for Replat of Lots 9-12, Block 25, Town of

Martin, Located At The Northwest Corner Of E. 4th Street and Hulett Street, Edgerton,
Kansas.

6. Approve Application FP2024-0002, Final Plat for Replat of Logistics Park Kansas City –
Southeast, Fourth Plat, Located At The Southeast Corner Of W. 191st Street and Montrose
Street, Edgerton, Kansas.

Councilmember Lewis moved to approve the Consent Agenda, seconded by Councilmember 
Conus. The Consent Agenda was approved, 5-0. 

DRA
FT



Edgerton City Council 
Special Session 
July 2, 2024 
Page 2  
 

Page 2 of 6 
 

Regular Agenda 
7. Declaration. There were no declarations made.  

 
8. Public Comments.  
Mr. Bill Lafalce thanked the council for having him and wished everyone a happy and safe 4th of 
July.  
He stated he would like to see about the possibility of having a shred event at future city-wide 
clean up days. He stated he would also like to address the drainage issue on West 4th. He 
stated since Bridgewater was established, water run off has been a huge issue in every 
direction, causing property drainage issues. He stated he had City Public Works staff come out 
to his property and clear out the drain this morning. He stated he hopes to see some resolution 
to these problems and see some kind of new drainage solution put in to keep water out. He 
stated he has invested thousands of dollars into leveling his property and installing French 
drains, but flooding is still occurring. He added the county assesses his house at $200,000 but 
he does not think he could sell it for that amount due to these issues. He stated there is money 
coming into the City and would like to see it allocated to projects like this.  
 
He stated he would also like to see a Veteran’s Monument established. He suggested the City 
host a contest to get better feedback. He stated this would be a great way to honor our 
veterans in the community, including the medal of honor recipient from WWI. He would also 
like to see Rays old gas station dedicated as a historic monument. He added the building looks 
junky more than ever before and by putting it on the historic register, maybe it could be 
preserved. He stated Ray was an icon for this town and those that have been here know how 
important he is to this community. 
 
He stated he would like to recognize the tremendous staff the City has, they really do set the 
standard for excellence. He stated each member of City staff he has worked with has been 
great help and always kind to him. He stated they deal often with unruly or rude people, so it’s 
nice for them to be recognized for the great work they do and for them to know the community 
is thankful. He also gave a special mention Charlie Troutner for all the work he does for the 
museum.  
 
There were no further public comments made.  
 
Mayor Roberts addressed the public comments made by Mr. Lafalce.  
 
He stated in regard to the shred truck, if people in the community are interested in something 
like this, they should let staff know so that we can consider that through budget talks.  
 
He then addressed the flooding around Mr. Lafalce’s home. Mayor Roberts stated stormwater 
master plan showed that there would need to be approximately $6 million in repairs throughout 
the city with a third of that total just around Mr. Lafalce’s neighborhood. He stated those types 
of projects are listed in the CIP list; however, currently none are funded other than some 
repairs on Second Street for 2025 as road work is being done. He stated he would encourage 
this issue to be on kept on peoples minds as Council works through the CIP lists.  
 

DRA
FT



Edgerton City Council 
Special Session 
July 2, 2024 
Page 3  
 

Page 3 of 6 
 

Ms. Linn stated the CIP Work Session is open to the public to attend, this is usually the second 
council meeting in October.  
 
Mayor Roberts stated he thinks the Veteran’s Monument is a great idea and he for years has 
tried to convince Eagle Scouts to work on a project for this. He stated the City could then help 
fund. He stated the sign on the highway was actually started by the mother of Shane Austin; 
the City did not initiate that project, but did help fund the sign costs when approached. He 
stated this is something that can be done by anyone, it does not have to be the City to start an 
item like this.  
 
Ms. Linn stated staff can get Mr. Lafalce the info to start the process.  
 
As to the comments about adding Rays gas station to the historic register, Mayor Roberts stated 
he is not sure about that process. He stated he does not believe it has to be the owner that 
does this, anyone can do it. He stated it does not guarantee any maintenance is completed and 
the designation can increase costs because there are only certain materials, etc. you can use 
and things you can do. He stated having it as historic though could potentially bring grant 
money in to help offset costs of maintenance.  
 
He stated he does appreciate Mr. Lafalce expressing his positive comments toward staff. He 
stated they do not often receive the positive feedback. He believes the City does have a great 
staff and they do not often get recognized for it.  
 
There were no further public comments made.  
 
9. CONSIDER A CONTRACT WITH ECOTURF PLAYGROUND SURFACING FOR 

PLAYGROUND AND FITNESS SURFACING OF $49,582.72 FOR THE GLENDELL 
ACRES PARK IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT. 
 

Ms. Holly Robertson addressed the Council. She stated in February, City Council approved an 
update to the project budget and contract with CM Concrete for construction of the 
improvements at Glendell Acres Park. She stated construction is currently underway and 
scheduled to be completed later this year. 
 
She stated in May, Council approved a contract with KDHE for the Waste Tire Grant Program 
where the city was awarded $24,000, approximately half the cost of supplies, labor, shipping, 
and equipment for the playground surfacing. 
 
She stated attached is the Ecoturf Playground surfacing contract for $49,582.72 for the 
playground surfacing at Glendell Acres. She stated staff recommends contracting directly with 
Ecoturf to better control the deliverables required by KDHE as part of the loan process. She 
stated additionally, Ecoturf has experience with project specifications and has worked with the 
equipment manufacturers. She stated Ecoturf has also worked on projects of similar size and 
larger, as well as projects that incorporate KDHE funding. She stated CM Concrete also 
recommends them, having worked with them on past projects.  
 

DRA
FT



Edgerton City Council 
Special Session 
July 2, 2024 
Page 4  
 

Page 4 of 6 
 

She stated the cost summary is included in the Council packet. In accordance with the City’s 
purchasing policy, the City Administrator has approved a deduct of $44,490 from CM Concretes 
contract for their quoted price of playground resurfacing. She stated this amount is the cost of 
the playground minus $5,092.72, which is their cost for administration/scheduling on the 
project.  
 
With no questions or comments, Mayor Roberts requested motion to approve the contract with 
Ecoturf for Glendell Acres Park resurfacing for a total cost of $49,458.72.  
 
Councilmember Longanecker moved to approve, seconded by Councilmember Lebakken. The 
agreement was approved, 5-0. 
 
 
10. CONSIDER DESIGNATION OF OFFICIAL CITY NEWSPAPER 
 
Ms. Kara Banks addressed the Council. She stated the City currently designates The Gardner 
News as its official city newspaper for legal records and notices, however The Gardner News is 
no longer in operation as of July 1st. She stated the owner, CherryRoad Media, made the 
announcement on June 27th, stating the paper is not financially viable. She stated in a letter on 
their website, CherryRoad CEO Jeremy Gulban wrote the paid circulation for the paper was less 
than 200. 
 
She stated under KSA 12-1651, the City now must designated a new official City newspaper 
within certain requirements:  

1. It must be published at least weekly 50 times per year for at least one year prior to any 
publication of any official city publication 

2. It must be entered at the post office of publication as second-class mail matter 
3. More than 50% of the circulation must be sold to the subscribers either on a daily, 

weekly, monthly or yearly basis 
4. It shall have general paid circulation on a daily, weekly, monthly or yearly basis in the 

county and shall not be a trade, religious or fraternal publication. 

She stated under these requirements, the City has two options: the Kansas City Star or the 
Legal Record. She stated after research, the Legal Record is significantly less expensive for the 
City, however the subscriber cost is much higher.  
 
She stated the City may have a third option for most legal publications. The KS Attorney 
General’s Office released an opinion last year that allows cities of the second and third class to 
use Home Rule powers to opt out of the newspaper publication requirements because they are 
not uniformly applied to cities across the state. She stated the city may then publish official city 
business on its own website. She stated this does not apply to budget publications or where 
service by publication requires notice to be published in a newspaper in the county where a 
lawsuit is filed.  
 

DRA
FT



Edgerton City Council 
Special Session 
July 2, 2024 
Page 5  
 

Page 5 of 6 
 

She stated for these reasons, staff is recommending legally required publications and 
notifications be published in the Legal Record and a new legal record page be created on the 
City’s website.  
 
Councilmember Conus asked if the KC Star or Legal Record will provide news and event 
coverage for the city.  
 
Ms. Banks stated they will not.  
 
Councilmember Lewis stated social media can be the outlet for that.  
 
Ms. Linn stated having an outside newspaper allows for third party proof of publication and 
provides that transparency element.  
 
With no further questions or comments, Mayor Roberts requested motion to approve the 
designation of the Legal Record as the City’s official newspaper.  
 
Councilmember Conus moved to approve the motion, seconded by Councilmember 
Longanecker. The motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
 
11. Report by the City Administrator 

• Right-of-Way Restoration Update 
Mr. Whitaker addressed the Council. He stated as of June 17th, Kwikcom is done with their 
project and is working on wrapping up a few items. NPL, as of today, is working on restoration 
for vegetation and has filled in the holes. He stated they could potentially wait to complete 
vegetation portion, so they are not wasting effort. He stated this has been 358 days of staff 
time working with them and monitoring their efforts.  
 
Mayor Roberts stated would like to add that people often see these projects and think it is the 
City, but he would like to note that both of these were not City projects. He stated staff does 
not inspect other projects, we just try to maintain the right of way and it is the individual 
company’s job to remediate what they have touched. He encouraged residents that have had 
issues to reach out directly to the company.  
 
 
12. Report by the Mayor 
Mayor Roberts stated tomorrow is 3rd of July and encouraged everyone to come to the party. 
He stated the show is on despite the weather, but there will be no parking on the soccer field, 
so he heavily encourages people to use the shuttle stops. He stated shuttle will be at the 
Elementary School and City Hall.  
 
Councilmember Conus thanked Dan Merkh for his tour of the Sewer Plant. He stated he now 
has a new appreciation for what goes on behind the scenes and how complicated it really is to 
run the Treatment Plant.  
 

DRA
FT



Edgerton City Council 
Special Session 
July 2, 2024 
Page 6  
 

Page 6 of 6 
 

Mayor Roberts stated Edgerton is pretty unique because we have very stringent standards for 
wastewater.  
 
13. Future Meeting Reminders 

Mayor Roberts reminded the Council of the future meetings for the Council and Planning 
Commission.  

 
14. Adjourn  

 
Councilmember Lewis moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Malloy. The meeting 
was adjourned at 5:31 PM 5-0. 
 
Submitted by Alexandria Clower, City Clerk 

DRA
FT



 

Agenda Item: Consider Final Acceptance of the Design/Build of the 
Skate Park for Glendell Acres Park Improvements  

 
 

City Council Action Item 
 
 

Council Meeting Date: July 11, 2024 
 
Department: Public Works 

 
 
 
 
 
Background/Description of Item: 
On June 8, 2023 City Council authorized a contract with American Ramp Company (ARC) for 
the design and construction of the skate park element for Glendell Acres Park Improvements 
Project.  
 
The table below summarizes the original contract amount and a previously approved change 
order for the placement of additional suitable material and preparation of the skate park 
subgrade. This contract amount and change order fits within the current budget that includes 
the waste tire grant received from KDHE and approved by City Council. 
 
Change 
Order # 

Description Amount Authority Approved 

 Original Contract $160,000 City Council Yes 
Change 
Order #1 

Additional subgrade 
materials 

$1,845 City Administrator Yes 

 Total $161,845   
 
 
On June 20th, 2024 a walk-through inspection of the skatepark was performed by City Staff, 
project inspector, and design team. Some hairline cracking was observed throughout the skate 
park slab and brought to the attention of ARC. Additionally, a close-out punch list of repairs 
was submitted to ARC and items were completed for a final walk through on June 21st, 
excluding the hairline cracking. Due to the small size and lack of displacement of the cracks, 
the cracks are within the specifications from the original contract with ARC. ARC recommends 
accepting the work to initiate the warranty period and observe the cracking over the next year 
for any further cracking or displacement. Attached is the final acceptance documentation and 
1-year warranty for the concrete and shotcrete surfaces of the park.  
 
The project inspector completed the final inspection of the punch list noting all items were 
completed and built according to plans and specifications. 
 
Staff would recommend approval of final acceptance for the skate park design/build contract 
and authorize final payment to American Ramp Company. 



Recommendation: Approve Final Acceptance of the Design/Build of the 
Skate Park for Glendell Acres Park Improvements and Authorize Mayor to 
Sign the Final Acceptance Documentation. 

 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statue(s): N/A 

 
 
 
Funding Source:  Park Impact Fee, General Fund, KDHE Waste Tire Grant 
 
 
Budget Allocated:  $1,140,867 
 

Finance Director Approval:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enclosed:  Final Acceptance Documentation 
   Concrete Warranty 
 
Prepared by:  Dan Merkh, Public Works Director 
  
 



601 McKinley 
Joplin, MO 64801 
Toll-free      877-RAMP-778  
Local          417-206-6816 
Fax             417-206-6888         
sales@americanrampcompany.com 

Edgerton, KS
Attn: Holly Robertson
404 East Nelson St.,
Edgerton, KS 66021

SKATEPARK FINAL ACCEPTANCE AND RELEASE OF PAYMENT 

1. I am an authorized representative of the City of Edgerton. 
2. I have reviewed the construction and installation of the skatepark equipment.  On behalf of the City of 

Edgerton, I acknowledge that it has been built and installed in accordance with the specifications, 
construction drawings, and contractual requirements.

3. I agree that there are no defects or other issues with the construction and installation.
4. The skatepark project work is hereby accepted by the City of Edgerton, subject to the terms and conditions 

set forth in the contract between the parties, including the incorporated warranty of American Ramp 
Company, Inc.

5. I authorize issuance of the final payment for the Edgerton Skate Park.

American Ramp Company, Inc. requires signature of this document to activate your Limited Warranty.  
Client’s return of this form with the required signature is a condition precedent to the Limited 
Warranty. ARC’s receipt of final payment further constitutes Final Acceptance by City of Edgerton.  

Signed: 

City of Edgerton 
Name & Title: 

Date: 



1 YEAR LIMITED ON ALL CONCRETE & SHOTCRETE SURFACES

 
 

EXCEPTIONS TO WARRANTY
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

DISCLAIMER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES
 

or any other direct loss or damage or for lost profits or revenues of any kind, arising out of this  
agreement, whether in any action for or 

SAFETY
 

 

PURCHASER REP. DATE

CONCRETE WARRANTY



 

 

Agenda Item: Consider Resolution No. 07-11-24A Providing For A 
Hearing To Discuss A Possible Dangerous and Unsafe Building 
Existing At 301 E. 5th Street In The City Of Edgerton, Johnson County, 
Kansas Pursuant to City of Edgerton Municipal Code, Chapter IV, 
Article 4, Section 4-1105. 
   

 

 
 

City Council Action Item 
 
 

Council Meeting Date: July 11, 2024 
 
Department: Community Development 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background/Description of Item: 
On June 3, 2024, the City Building Inspector conducted an inspection of the property at 301 E. 
5th Street in response to complaints received regarding a vacant and dilapidated structure 
located at 301 E. 5th Street. The result of this inspection is provided in the inspection report 
included as Exhibit A. 
 
The Edgerton Municipal Code provides that when it appears to the Public Officer (Building 
Inspector) that a structure is dangerous, unsafe or unfit for human habitation, they may report 
such findings to the Governing Body (Municipal Code, Chapter IV, Article 11, Section 4-1104). 
Upon receipt of this report and pursuant to Municipal Code, Chapter IV, Article 11, Section 4-
1105, should the Governing Body of the City of Edgerton find a structure unfit for human use 
or habitation because of dilapidation, defects, unsanitary conditions, or conditions which provide 
a general blight upon the neighborhood or surrounding properties, the Governing Body may fix 
a time and place at which the owner, the owner’s agent, any lienholder of record and any 
occupant of the structure may appear and show cause why the structure should not be 
condemned and ordered repaired or demolished. 
 
Resolution No. 07-11-24A has been prepared pursuant to Chapter 4, Article 11, Section 1105 of 
the Edgerton Municipal Code to set the date and time for such a hearing. This resolution must 
be published once each week for two consecutive weeks, and 30 days must elapse between the 
last publication and the date set for the hearing. Publication of this resolution will occur on July 
16th, 2024 and July 23rd, 2024, with a public hearing set for 51 days later of Thursday, September 
12, 2024 at 7:00 PM, should this resolution be adopted. 
  
Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s): Municipal Code Chapter IV, Article 11; KSA 12-1752. 

 
 
 
Funding Source: N/A 
 



 

 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution No. 07-11-24A Providing For A 
Hearing To Discuss A Possible Dangerous and Unsafe Building Existing 
At 301 E. 5th Street In The City Of Edgerton, Johnson County, Kansas 
Pursuant to City of Edgerton Municipal Code, Chapter IV, Article 4, 
Section 4-1105. 
 

Budget Allocated: N/A 
 
Finance Director Approval: N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Zachary Moore, Development Services Director 
 
Enclosed:  
Exhibit A - Building Official’s Request for Condemnation/Inspection Report                  
Exhibit B - Resolution Requesting Public Hearing 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                     EXHIBIT A 
BUILDING OFFICIALS REQUEST FOR 

CONDEMNATION/INSPECTION REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                     EXHIBIT B 
       RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

Page 1 of 2   

 
 

 
 

 

 

Building Official’s Request for Condemnation 

 

The City of Edgerton Community Development Department has determined that the following structure is 

dangerous and unsafe as defined by the Municipal Code and Kansas Statutes Annotated.    

 

Request By: Jim Brown, CBO, LEED Green Associate    Date: 06/21/2024 

 

Address:   301 E 5th Street 

 

KS Uniform Parcel #: 0462030701012001000            City of Edgerton, Kansas. 
 

Legal Description: CITY OF EDGERTON (MARTIN) LTS 1-6 EX PT IN SE CR LT 1 2BLK 22 EDC 355 

 

Occupancy Status:  Vacant. 

 

Building Description:   Residential building 

 

Zoning: R-1 

 

Appraised value of the structure: $107,500 (Per Johnson Co. Appraiser’s office as of June 2024) 

 

Taxes and other assessments owed:  Taxes are current. Not aware of other assessments.  

 
Background:   

The structure at 301 E 5th Street is a 1,068 square foot single family structure constructed in 1900. 

The property is currently zoned R-1 (Single Family Residence District). The property area is .41 
acres. 

 

Owner 1:  Danny P. O’Neal                       Owner 2: Jane A. O’Neal 
               26845 W 207th Street                              26845 W 207th Street     

               Gardner, KS 66030                                 Gardner, KS 66030 

 
On June 3, 2024, in response to complaints received involving an unoccupied, vacant and dilapidated 

structure located at 301 E 5th Street an investigation was carried out. During this investigation, several 

significant violations were observed and documented as noted in the inspection report (attached). 
 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 2   

 

 

 

 

  

 

                                       DANGEROUS STRUCTURES INSPECTION  
Municipal Code Chapter IV, Article 11 

       Following an inspection of the subject property at 301 E. 5th Street, the City Inspector found the following: 

  

1. The structural foundation elements located at the southeast and northeast corners are 

in extreme disrepair and has reached its limit state. The current condition demonstrates a 

lack of stability in supporting the imposed loads. 

2. The roof structure shows evidence of extreme dilapidation and deterioration.  

3.  The electrical service is in disrepair whereas the mast and weather head has broken 
away from the meter base. The electrical meter and housing has been removed. The gas 

meter has been removed. There is no evidence of active utilities for this structure.  

4. The building is vacant, leading to its enticement as an attractive nuisance, which may 

contribute to harboring of vagrants and other unauthorized persons.  

5. In addition to the violations noted on the principal dwelling, there exists a large amount 

of tree debris in the rear yard.  

        

All dangerous buildings and structures are hereby declared to be a public nuisance and shall be vacated, 

repaired and/or demolished in accordance with the procedures specified in the Municipal Code and under 

authority of Kansas Statutes Annotated KSA 12-1750 through 12- 1756a. 

 

 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 07-11-24A 
 
A RESOLUTION IN THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, ESTABLISHING THE 
TIME AND PLACE FOR A PUBLIC HEARING TO DETERMINE WHETHER A 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 301 EAST 5TH STREET IN THE CITY OF EDGERTON, 
JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS IS A DANGEROUS OR UNSAFE STRUCTURE, 
PURSUANT TO CITY OF EDGERTON CITY CODE, CHAPTER IV, ARTICLE 11, 
SECTION 4-1105.  

 
      WHEREAS, the Public Officer has filed with the Governing Body a written statement 
charging that the structure located upon the property at 301 E. 5th Street, Edgerton, 
Kansas (the “Property”), is, in his determination, unsafe or dangerous; and 
 
      BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, CITY OF EDGERTON, JOHNSON COUNTY, 
KANSAS: 
 
      Section 1: That pursuant to Section 4-1105 and K.S.A. 12-1752, the owner, the 
owner’s agent, any lien holders of record and any occupant of the Property may appear 
and show cause why such structure should not be condemned and ordered repaired or 
demolished at 7:00 P.M. on September 12, 2024 in the City Council Chambers, 404 East 
Nelson Street, Edgerton. Kansas. 
 
      Section 2: This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption 
by the Governing Body and the City Clerk shall cause it to be published once each week 
for two consecutive weeks on the same day of each week in the official city newspaper 
as required by Edgerton Municipal Code Chapter IV, Article 11, Section 4-1106 and K.S.A. 
12-1752. 
 
       BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: 
 
       That all costs incurred by the City of Edgerton, Kansas, for any repairs, alterations, 
improvements, vacating, removal, or demolition, including making the site safe shall be 
assessed against the Property as provided in Section 4-1111 of the City Code. Should 
those amounts go unpaid, the County Clerk shall extend the same on the tax roll and it 
shall be collected by the County Treasurer and paid to the City of Edgerton as other City 
taxes are collected and paid. 
 
 
PASSED By the City Council on this this 11th day of July, 2024. 
 
 
APPROVED BY the Mayor on this 11th day of July, 2024 
      



                                                                                    
                Donald Roberts, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:                                                         
 
 
________________________                         
Alexandria Clower, City Clerk                            
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________ 
Lee W. Hendricks, City Attorney 
  
  
 



 

Agenda Item: Consider Amendment to the Cooperation Agreement with 
the Board of County Commissioners of Johnson County, Kansas for 
renewing participation in the Johnson County Urban County for 
participation in the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), Home 
Investment Partnerships (HOME), and Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG). 

 
 

City Council Action Item 
 
 

Council Meeting Date: July 11, 2024 
 
Department: Public Works 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background/Description of Item: 
On March 27th, 2003 the City of Edgerton executed a cooperative agreement by official action 
of the governing body and Johnson County for the purpose of undertaking essential 
community revitalization and lower income housing assistance activities, specifically urban 
renewal and publicly assisting housing funding from annual CDBG and Home program 
appropriations for which the County qualifies for entitlement from federal programs. The 
agreement automatically renews at the end of each three-year qualification period. 
Additionally, as part of the agreement the City acknowledges it is ineligible to apply for grants 
under the HUD-Administered Small Cities or State CDBG Programs. 
 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) – This program provides annual grants 
on a formula basis to Johnson County who then administers an annual competitive grant 
for cities and organizations within the County. The selection is based on providing decent 
housing, a suitable living environment, and by expanding economic opportunities, 
principally for low- and moderate-income people. There is no cost to the City to participate 
in this program; however, typically matching dollars of 25% to 50% of the projects are 
used to supplement the annual project costs. The City can request a maximum of $200,000 
over a 2 year period. 
 
HOME Rehabilitation (HOME) – This program assists eligible homeowners in Johnson 
County with rehabilitation needs of their owner-occupied homes. Health and safety, 
accessibility and curing local code citations may be addressed through this program. 
Assistance is provided as a deferred payment plan between the homeowner and the 
County, there is not cost for the City of Edgerton for residents to participate in the 
program. 
 
Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) – Johnson County partners with local homeless 
assistance agencies to conduct activities like street outreach, emergency shelters, 



Recommendation: Amendment to the Cooperation Agreement with the 
Board of County Commissioners of Johnson County, Kansas for renewing 
participation in the Johnson County Urban County for participation in the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), Home Investment 
Partnerships (HOME), and Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG). 

homelessness prevention, rapid re-housing, and HMIS. There is not cost for the City of 
Edgerton related to this program. 

 
On June 27th, 2024 Johnson County Planning, Housing & Community Development issued an 
amendment to the Cooperation Agreement to the City. The amendment is necessary for the 
County to continue to meet HUD requirements for cooperation agreements for Urban County 
Qualifications. The agreement amendments are attached and provide updated information for 
terminating the agreement between the City and County as well as adding code language for 
Americans with Disabilities Act and Age Discrimination Act per HUD requirements. 
 
Staff would recommend approval of the agreement amendments to ensure continuation and 
compliance with the County CDBG, HOME, and ESG programs. 
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statue(s): N/A 

 
 
 
Funding Source:  NA 
 
 
Budget Allocated:  NA 
 

Finance Director Approval:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enclosed:  CDBG HOME Cooperation Agreement Amendment 2 
   Edgerton Cooperation Agreement 2004-2006 
 
Prepared by:  Holly Robertson, P.E. – CIP Project Manager 
  
 



 Community Development (913) 715-2200 office 111 S Cherry, Suite 2000 
(913) 715-2222 fax Olathe KS  66061 
(800) 766-3777 TDD jocogov.org 

June 27, 2024 

Mayor Donald Roberts 
City of Edgerton 
404 E. Nelson, PO Box 255 
Edgerton, KS 66021 

Dear Mayor Roberts: 

The Cooperation Agreement between the City and Johnson County for Fiscal Years 2004-2006 contained 
a provision that both the County and City agreed to “to adopt any amendment(s) to this Agreement 
incorporating changes that are necessary to meet HUD requirements for cooperation agreements set 
forth in any future Urban County Qualification Notice(s) that apply to a subsequent three-year urban 
county qualification period”. 

The County must incorporate additional language to provisions V (B) and VII in the Cooperation 
Agreement detailing specific instructions for if the City or County wish to terminate the agreement the 
“terminating party shall send a copy of the notice of termination to the HUD field office by the date 
specified in HUD’s Urban County Qualification Notice.” The County must also add references to the 
implementing Code of Federal Regulations citations, as well incorporate the following: Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1974, the Age Discrimination 
Act of 1975, Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968. 

Due to a timeline established by HUD, we are requesting that the City take action on the amendment as 
soon as practicable.  For the county to satisfy HUD’s requirements for requalification, we must 
receive the executed amendment and a certified copy of the Council Minutes no later than July 25, 
2024. If you have any questions related to this matter, I can be reached at 913-715-2245 or by 
email at leslie.davis@jocogov.org.  

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Leslie Davis 
Community Development Coordinator 







o Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, 
and  

• All other applicable laws.  

3.0 All other terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain unchanged and in 
full force and effect.  

The Parties have caused their duly authorized representatives to execute the above and 
foregoing Amendment to the Agreement on the date of last signature below.  

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
JOHNSON COUNTY KANSAS THROUGH 
THE DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING, 
HOUSING, AND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
 
___________________________________ 
Jay C. Leipzig, Director of Planning, 
Housing, and Community Development 
 
Date: ______________________ 

CITY OF EDGERTON 
 
_________________________________ 
Printed Name: Donald Roberts 
Title: Mayor  
 
Date: ____________________ 

 
ATTEST: 
      
 
_________________________________ 
Lynda Sader, Deputy County Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 
Betsey Lasister, Ass’t County Counselor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Alexandria Clower, City Clerk 
 
      
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
      
_________________________________ 
Lee Hendricks, City Attorney 





















 

Agenda Item:  Consider Ordinance No. 2162 Authorizing The Execution 
Of A Loan Agreement Between The City Of Edgerton, Kansas And The 
State Of Kansas, Acting By An Through The Kansas Department Of Health 
And Environment For The Purpose Of Obtaining A Loan From The Kansas 
Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund For The Purpose Of Financing A 
Wastewater Treatment Project; Establishing A Dedicated Revenue For 
Repayment Of Such Loan; Authorizing And Approving Certain Documents 
In Connection Therewith; And Authorizing Certain Other Actions In 
Connection With The Loan Agreement. 

 
 

City Council Action Item 
 
 

Council Meeting Date:  July 11, 2024 
 
Department:  Utilities 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background/Description of Item: 
 
On October 26, 2023, City Council approved the resolution to apply for SRF funding, 
additionally a public hearing was held for the Dwyer Sanitary Sewer Extension Project to be 
funded by the Kansas Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund through the Kansas Department 
of Health and Environment (KDHE). The project and anticipated funding sources were 
presented in the public hearing as a requirement of the loan application. City Staff worked 
with KDHE throughout the loan review process and received notice at the end of June 2024 
that the loan was approved.  
 
The Dwyer Sewer Project includes constructing approximately 1,800 linear feet of 18-inch 
sanitary sewer to serve the Dwyer Farms new residential development and large watershed 
(Site #1). To serve this development, the City of Edgerton will also improve the City Pump 
Station to install an equalization basin, construct a 30-inch gravity main at the City Pump 
Station, and upsize approximately 245 linear feet of existing 8-inch sanitary sewer (Site #2). 
Additional improvements to accommodate the Dwyer Farms development are expected at the 
Big Bull Creek Wastewater Treatment (BBCWWTP) Plant including SCADA upgrades and 
replacement of aged equipment (Site #3). 
 
The proposed improvements to Edgerton’s Wastewater System for the Dwyer Sewer Project 
are estimated to be $5,000,000.00 and will be funded under the low interest Kansas Water 
Pollution Control Revolving Fund Program through the Kansas Department of Health and 
Environment (KDHE). The loan repayment will be made with Rural Housing Incentive District 
(RHID) funds generated by Dwyer Farms Development.  



Recommendation: Approve Ordinance No. 2162 Authorizing The 
Execution Of A Loan Agreement Between The City Of Edgerton, Kansas 
And The State Of Kansas, Acting By An Through The Kansas Department 
Of Health And Environment For The Purpose Of Obtaining A Loan From 
The Kansas Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund For The Purpose Of 
Financing A Wastewater Treatment Project; Establishing A Dedicated 
Revenue For Repayment Of Such Loan; Authorizing And Approving 
Certain Documents In Connection Therewith; And Authorizing Certain 
Other Actions In Connection With The Loan Agreement Subject to City 
Attorney Approval. 

 
On July 5, 2024 the loan agreement between the Kansas Department of Health and 
Environment Acting on Behalf of the State of Kansas and the City of Edgerton, Kansas for 
KWPCRF Project No. C20 3097 01 was received. Enclosed is Ordinance No. 2162 entitled: 
 

An ordinance authorizing the execution of a loan agreement between the City of 
Edgerton, Kansas and the State of Kansas, acting by an through the Kansas 
Department of Health and Environment for the purpose of obtaining a loan from the 
Kansas Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund for the purpose of financing a 
wastewater treatment project; establishing a dedicated revenue for repayment of such 
loan; authorizing and approving certain documents in connection therewith; and 
authorizing certain other actions in connection with the loan agreement. 

 
Adoption of this Ordinance will authorize execution of the Loan Agreement under the Kansas 
Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund Act. City Staff recommends adoption of the draft 
Ordinance No. 2162 as provided by KDHE pending approval of the City Attorney. 
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statue(s):  N/A 

 
 
 
Funding Source:  SRF Loan, RHID 
 
Budget Allocated: $5,000,000 
 

Finance Director Approval:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enclosed:  Ordinance No. 2162 
   Loan Agreement 
 
Prepared by:  Holly Robertson, PE – CIP Project Manager 



































































































 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
Date:  July 11, 2024 
To:  City of Edgerton Governing Body 
From:  Zachary Moore, Development Services Director 
Re:  Status Update – 312 E. 5th Street, Edgerton, Kansas 
 
On May 9, 2024 the Edgerton City Council passed Resolution 05-09-24B, which requires the 
owners of 312 E. 5th Street, Edgerton, Kansas to resolve the dangerous and unfit structure which 
exists on said property by June 10, 2024 by either bringing the property within compliance with 
the City Code or by demolishing the structures on site.  
 
At the June 13, 2024 City Council meeting, an update was provided to the Council regarding the 
progress that had occurred since the property was found to have an unsafe structure with 
Resolution 05-09-24B. Between May 9 and June 13, the property owner had set up a utility 
account for the property, collected a series of bids for work to bring the structure closer to 
compliance with City codes, and had removed the dilapidated trailer from the property.  
 
Additionally, the property owner’s representative had mentioned at the June 13 City Council 
meeting that a bid had been collected for demolition of the property, and that the property owner 
would be making a decision on whether or not to pursue demolition of the structures on the 
property the next day, June 14. City Council was amenable to an extension of the deadline 
established with Resolution 05-09-24B to June 27, provided that an update be provided at the 
next City Council meeting.  
 
As of the writing of this memorandum, the property remains as it did as of the June 13 City 
Council meeting, and the only action that staff has witnessed on the property was that the lawn 
had been mowed and a tree had been cut down. Staff has not received any verbal or written 
update from the property owner or their representatives regarding the status of the demolition 
bid to date either.  
 
Any additional updates received after publication of this agenda packet will be shared by staff 
during the July 11th City Council meeting.  
 



Edgerton Utilities is committed to providing excellent water, wastewater, and stormwater services
that ensure the health and safety of our community with a focus on protecting our limited water

resources efficiently and effectively for generations to come.

299
locates

Service Orders

36
turn-offs for 
non-payment

15
turn-ons

6
continuous flow reports

March 1 - May 31

Utilities
Quarterly Update March-May 2024

Water 6,950,675 
gallons pumped March-May 

Testing
Daily Chlorine
6 Bac-T (Ecoli)
Quarterly S2DBPR

Consumer Confidence Report
The City of Edgerton published the

annual Consumer Confidence Report.
Once again, the City has had no drinking

water violations in the past year and
continues to meet or exceed all federal

guidelines for water quality.

Flushing 
6,000 gallons

Failed Tests0

Investigations
6  Meters “not reporting” or not working
3  Antennas damaged and replaced 
6  Other investigations for meter/water service issues

Lead Service Line Inventory
The City of Edgerton received roughly 95 responses to our LSLI
survey during the month of March. Customers who completed the
survey received a $20 bill credit. The City is continuing the
inventory project, receiving additional assistance from JEO
Consulting through KDHE to improve the response rate.

5
4519

Meters Repair/Replace

Meter Maintenance Monthly meter readings

Maintenance Highlights

Locates include water and sewer lines.
During the last three months, 8 of these

locates were emergency.

Locates



Edgerton Utilities is committed to providing excellent water, wastewater, and stormwater services
that ensure the health and safety of our community with a focus on protecting our limited water

resources efficiently and effectively for generations to come.

Utilities
Quarterly Update March - May 2024

Plant Maintenance

Sewer 13,709,000
gallons treated

Staffing/Training

New Utilities Maintenance Tech hired
PW Superintendent temporarily covered
plant operations for six weeks
Two staff members received training at
annual KRWA Conference

Lift Station Maintenance

EWWLS -Hoist maintenance completed
by PW and Utilities staff
8th St LS - Winter heater shut off and
basin blower activated
Essex LS and IMF LS - Grease and trash
management

Leaks

Sanitary Sewer 
Overflow

0
0

CDBG Sewer Rehabilitation Project

Staff replaced an influent pump at Big Bull Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant. Major repairs were
also made to the clarifiers after a scraper arm failure.  Staff pumped out 75,000+/- gallons from
Clarifier #2 to repair the issue and establish a flow for treatment in #2. Pumped about the same
amount out of Clarifier #1 for repair. Assessment of cause of the failure is currently under review.

The City is continuing our sanitary sewer system rehabilitation project that started in 2021. The
project replaces clay tile pipe with cured-in-place pipe (CIPP) to reduce inflow and infiltration of storm
water into our sanitary sewer system. 

For 2024, the area that will receive work is between Nelson and McCarty Streets, from 1st to 5th
streets. Initial sewer inspections have been completed. Analysis of pipes is now underway. The sewer
inspection team will identify areas that need repairs prior to lining the pipe later this year.


	Agenda 07.11.2024
	4_Minutes 07.02.2024 Special Meeting
	5_Final Acceptance Skate Park Glendell Acres
	9_Resolution 07-11-24A Hearing for Possible Dangerous Structure at 301 E 5th
	10_Amendment to Agmt w BOCC for CDBG HOME and ESG
	11_Ordinance 2162 SRF Loan for Sewer Improvements
	CA_Update 312 E 5th St
	CA_Utilities 2nd Qtr Update



